
APOLOGIES Committee Services
Tel. 01621 875791

Council Chamber 01621 859677
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Fiona Marshall

23 July 2018

Dear Councillor

You are summoned to attend the meeting of the;

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE 

on TUESDAY 31 JULY 2018 at 7.30 pm.

in the Council Chamber. Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon.

A copy of the agenda is attached.

Yours faithfully

Director of Customers and Community 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP CHAIRMAN D M Sismey

VICE-CHAIRMAN I E Dobson

COUNCILLORS Mrs B F Acevedo
J P F Archer
P G L Elliott
A S Fluker
B E Harker
M S Heard
Rev. A E J Shrimpton

Ex-officio non-voting Members: Councillor Mark F L Durham CC
Councillor Brian S Beale MBE

Please note: Limited hard copies of this agenda and its related papers will be available at the meeting.  
Electronic copies are available via the Council’s website.

Unrestricted Document Pack



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



Page 3
For further information please call 01621 876232 or 875791

or see the Council's website – www.maldon.gov.uk.

AGENDA
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY 31 JULY 2018

1. Chairman's notices (please see overleaf)  

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 5 - 22)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Finance and Corporate Services 
Committee held on 12 June 2018, (copy enclosed).

4. Disclosure of Interest  

To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 
Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the 
agenda having regard to paragraphs 6-8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for Members.

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).

5. Public Participation  

To receive the views of members of the public on items of business to be considered by 
the Committee (please see below):
1. A period of ten minutes will be set aside.
2. An individual may speak for no more than two minutes and will not be allowed 

to distribute or display papers, plans, photographs or other materials.
3. Anyone wishing to speak must notify the Committee Clerk between 7.00pm and 

7.20pm prior to the start of the meeting.

6. Corporate Health and Safety  (Pages 23 - 28)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

7. Budgetary Control (April - June 2018)  (Pages 29 - 42)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

8. Supplementary Estimates, Virements and Use of Reserves: 24 May - 27 June 2018  
(Pages 43 - 46)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


Page 4
For further information please call 01621 876232 or 875791

or see the Council's website – www.maldon.gov.uk.

9. Air Quality Update and Proposed Declaration of an Air Quality Management 
Area on Market Hill, Maldon  (Pages 47 - 72)

To consider the report of the Director of Customers and Community, (copy enclosed).

10. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 
urgent  

11. Exclusion of Public and Press  

To resolve that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.

12. Outstanding Loan - Financial Arrangements  (Pages 73 - 80)

To consider the report of the Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

NOTICES

Sound Recording of Meeting
Please note that the Council will be recording any part of this meeting held in open session 
for subsequent publication on the Council’s website.  At the start of the meeting an 
announcement will be made about the sound recording.  Members of the public attending the 
meeting with a view to speaking are deemed to be giving permission to be included in the 
recording.  

Fire
In event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green running 
man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  Please 
gather there and await further instruction.

Health and Safety
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.  There are 
steps behind the main horseshoe as well as to the side of the room.   

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV)
This meeting is being monitored and recorded by CCTV.

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


MINUTES of
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
12 JUNE 2018

PRESENT

Chairman Councillor D M Sismey

Vice-Chairman Councillor I E Dobson

Councillors Mrs B F Acevedo, J P F Archer, P G L Elliott, A S Fluker, 
B E Harker and Rev. A E J Shrimpton 

Substitute Member Councillor B S Beale MBE

In attendance Councillor Miss M R Lewis

163. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES 

The Chairman drew attention to the list of notices published on the back of the agenda.

164. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M F L Durham and M S Heard.

In accordance with notice given it was noted that Councillor B S Beale MBE was 
attending as a substitute for Councillor Heard.

165. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 April 2018 
be approved and confirmed.

166. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST 

Councillor D M Sismey disclosed that he was Managing Director of Goldman Sachs 
and would therefore leave the meeting for Agenda Item 12 – Annual Treasury Outturn 
2017 / 18.

167. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No requests had been received.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



168. CHAIRMANS' GOOD NEWS 

The Chairman advised that the accounts for 2017 / 18 had been published and were now 
subject to an audit which had been started by Ernst Young UK (the Council’s External 
Auditors).

He asked that the thanks of the Committee be passed to the finance team and Carrie 
Cox, Finance Manager for their hard work on the accounts.

169. RESOURCES DIRECTORATE 

The Chairman advised that there would not be a presentation.

170. CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL 

It was agreed that this item of business would be brought up the agenda and considered 
next.

The Committee considered the report of the Leader of the Council updating Members 
on progress of the Chief Executive’s performance appraisal.

The report set out the process undertaken by the Leader of the Council in respect of the 
Chief Executive’s appraisal.  It was noted that dates for performance reviews had been 
set and Appendix 1 to the report provided a summary of progress against objectives.

In the absence of the Leader of the Council, Councillor A S Fluker as Deputy Leader of 
the Council presented the report and provided detailed background history regarding the 
Chief Executive’s performance appraisal.  During his introduction he asked that the 
Committee pass on their wishes to the Leader of the Council for a speedy recovery 
following an accident he had over the weekend.  Councillor Fluker then proposed that 
the contents of the report be noted.

Councillor D M Sismey clarified that he had been consulted on the proposed objectives 
but was not consulted either before or afterwards regarding Councillor Fluker attending 
the appraisal meeting in his place.  He also referred to the Chief Executive’s objectives 
set for 2016 and felt that by virtue of Councillor Miss M R Lewis (Leader of the 
Council at that time) and Councillor I E Dobson (representing the Chairman of the 
Finance and Corporate Services Committee) being authorised by this Committee and 
the Council to undertake the appraisal these objectives were adopted and were not draft.  
Notwithstanding a change in leadership these objectives should therefore stand until 
another appraisal was carried out or replaced by updated ones.  

Councillor B S Beale, Leader of the Opposition, referred to the previous processes 
undertaken for carrying out the Chief Executive’s appraisal to which he had always 
been part of.  However, in relation to the 2017 appraisal he clarified that had not been 
consulted at any stage and refuted the statement in the report at paragraph 3.4 that he 
had.

A lengthy debate ensued during which a number of Members expressed concern 
regarding the process undertaken.  The Chairman highlighted paragraph 3.8 of the 

Page 6



report which contained a number of recommendations proposed to address the 
breakdown in procedure.

In response to comments made the Chief Executive outlined the background regarding 
her 2016 and 2017 appraisals and the reasons which had led to the identified breakdown 
in procedure.  She advised that she had put forward the recommendations in section 3.8 
of the report to make provide clarity to the process.

Councillor Sismey commented on the proposed recommendations at paragraph 3.8 and 
proposed that in addition to these that the Committee add; 

 That the deadline for the Chief Executive’s appraisal to be undertaken be aligned 
to the deadline for all staff of 30 June.

 that the Director of Resources or an appointment made by them from within the 
HR department be required to:
a) objectively ensure that the process for the Chief Executive’s appraisal is 

followed;
b) report to the following meeting of the Finance and Corporate Services 

Committee immediately after the June deadline that the process has 
been followed and the appraisal taken place. 

With the permission of the Chairman, Councillor Miss M R Lewis addressed the 
Committee and provided a detailed history regarding her undertaking of the Chief 
Executive’s appraisal in 2016 when she was Leader of the Council.  She pointed out a 
number of discrepancies within the report of the Leader of the Council and felt that it 
inferred that she had not carried out her duties and requirements as Leader of the 
Council which she had.

The Chairman requested that it be minuted that Members raised a number of questions 
over the accuracy of some of the historic elements of the report and emphasised the 
importance to make sure that the procedure was on a sound footing going forward.

Councillor Beale proposed that the Council receive an explanation as to how the current 
situation had occurred and the matter be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  In response the Chairman suggested that this would be best dealt with as a 
question to the Leader of the Council.

Councillor P G L Elliott commented on the report and suggested that going forward, 
prior to the Statutory Annual meeting of the Council, a final meeting for the municipal 
year be undertaken with the Chief Executive to review the objectives and identify any 
points of action.  Then new objections could be set following the statutory annual 
meeting.  The Chairman suggested that this could be covered by way of clarification to 
point (e) so that the third review meeting take place just before the end of the municipal 
year.

Councillor Elliott commented as it was clear that the process had not been followed that 
consideration of the report be deferred and brought back to the Committee following 
completion of the procedure.  The Chairman agreed that in light of there being a query 
over the current objectives these should be renewed and going forward the process 
followed.

Page 7



Following further discussion Councillor Sismey proposed that the Council’s Procedure 
Rules be updated to set out the requirements (a) to (e), as detailed in section 3.8 of the 
report with the following amendments and additions:

 been that point (c) be amended as follows:

 The appraisal will take place soon after the Statutory Annual meeting of 
the Council and before 30 June.

 that point (e) be amended as follows:

 Performance reviews against the agreed objectives will be undertaken at 
least every four months and an end of year review be undertaken prior to 
the Statutory Annual meeting of the Council.

 that the Director of Resources or an appointment made by them from within the 
HR department be required to:
a) objectively ensure that the process for the Chief Executive’s appraisal is 

followed
b) report to the following meeting of the Finance and Corporate Services 

Committee immediately after the June deadline that the process has 
followed and the appraisal taken place. 

It was noted that this would be a recommendation to the Council as it involved a change 
to the Council’s Procedure Rules.

He also proposed that the current objectives be renewed and brought back to a future 
meeting of this Committee.

This proposal was duly seconded and agreed.

RESOLVED 

(i) that the contents of the report be noted;

(ii) that the current objectives be renewed and brought back to a future meeting of 
this Committee.

RECOMMENDED

(iii) that the procedure rules be updated to set out the requirements (a) to (e), as 
detailed in section 3.8 of the report with the following amendments and 
additions:

 that point (c) be amended as follows:

 The appraisal will take place soon after the Statutory Annual 
meeting of the Council and before 30 June.

 that point (e) be amended as follows:

 Performance reviews against the agreed objectives will be 
undertaken at least every four months and an end of year review be 
undertaken prior to the Statutory Annual meeting of the Council.

Page 8



 that the Director of Resources or an appropriate appointment of theirs in 
the HR department is required to:

 objectively ensure that the process for the Chief Executive’s 
appraisal is followed

 report to the following meeting of the Finance and Corporate 
Services Committee immediately after the June deadline that the 
process has been followed and the appraisal has taken place. 

Councillor Miss M R Lewis left the meeting at this point and did not return.

171. REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 2017 / 18 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Executive giving details of 
performance against targets set for 2017 / 18 and to ensure that progress was being 
achieved towards the corporate goals and objectives detailed in the Corporate Plan 2015 
- 19 adopted by the Council.

The Key Corporate Activities assessed as being “behind schedule” or “at risk of not 
being achieved” along with indicators which had not achieved their end of year target 
were set out in Appendix 1 to the report.

RESOLVED that performance against the targets set for 2017 / 18 be noted.

172. HUMAN RESOURCES STATISTICS - QUARTER FOUR 2017 / 18 

The Committee received and noted the report of the Director of Resources presenting 
Human Resources statistics for the period 1 January to 31 March 2018.  

Statistics and updates relating to the following areas were detailed in the report:

 Labour Turnover;

 Exit Questionnaires;

 Recruitment;

 Job Vacancies;

 Staff Sickness Levels

 Workforce Statistics – attached as Appendix 1 to the report.

Members noted that the overall staff sickness levels had decreased by 20% in 
comparison to the previous financial year.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

173. HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Page 9



The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources seeking Members 
consideration of Human Resources policies and procedures which had been amended 
and developed.  

The report set out a proposed change to the Council’s Code of Conduct and it was noted 
that this change had been brought forward in consultation with the Corporate 
Leadership Team and Unison. 

In response to a question, the Director of Resources informed the Committee of the 
Employee Assistance Programme, a confidential service available to all employees and 
advised that as part of the policy staff were asked to raise any difficulties they may be 
having with Human Resources.

RECOMMENDED that the following two sections be added to the Code of Conduct:

24 Financial

24.1 All employees will ensure:

 they do not default on payments owed to the Council i.e. Council Tax.

 never make fraudulent claims for public money to gain a financial 
advantage i.e. housing benefit.

 to adhere to any agreements reached for the repayment of such debts.

24.2 Employees who are in debt or at risk to the Council or are concerned that missed 
payments may occur should discuss the matter as soon as is possible with a 
member of the Human Resources team. Failure to do so could lead to formal 
action being taken.

24.3 Employees in receipt of any allowances or rebates administered by the Council 
(e.g. council tax rebates) must notify the Council of any change in circumstance 
that affect the entitlement.

25 Accessing IT systems

25.1 Employees will at all times ensure that they comply with the Officer Conditions 
of Acceptable Use and Personal Commitment Statement policy relating to use of 
IT equipment.

25.2 It is recognised that staff can face a conflict of interest when undertaking their 
roles. To protect the interests of both the staff concerned and the Council against 
criticism or allegation of malpractice, as a 1matter of procedure no employee 
shall;

 amend or seek to influence the processing of any computer or other record 
concerning any matter in which they, a family member or friend have an 
interest;

 use the Councils IT systems or any other records held to view either their 
own data or that of records of family or friends.

Page 10



 use data obtained from any of the Councils IT systems or any other records 
to give themselves, family or friends any advantage.

 update any records that relate to themselves, family or friends.

174. ANNUAL REPORT ON THE WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources reporting on any 
complaints made under the Whistleblowing Policy for 2017 / 18.

The Director of Resources advised that no reports had been made under the 
Whistleblowing for the year 2017 / 18.  

RESOLVED that the content of the report be noted.

175. FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2017 / 18 

The Committee received the report of the Director of Resources providing information 
on the outturn position for the 2017 / 18 financial year and also movements in relation 
to the Council’s General Fund / Earmarked Reserves and Capital Commitments as at 31 
March 2018.  It was noted that the table detailed in paragraph 3.1.2 of the report 
incorrectly referred to the figures as being in thousands (£000’s).  Appendix 1 to the 
report gave details of the salary budgets and actual expenditure at the end of the 
financial year and Appendix 2 detailed the Earmarked Reserves and the movements in 
2017 / 18.

RESOLVED

(i) That the estimated outturn position for the 2017 / 18 financial year be reviewed;

(ii) That the movement in earmarked reserves be reviewed;

(iii) That the capital commitment roll forwards be reviewed.

Following his earlier declaration Councillor D M Sismey left the meeting at this point.

IN THE CHAIR : COUNCILLOR I E DOBSON

176. ANNUAL TREASURY OUTTURN 2017 / 18 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources seeking Members’ 
approval of the annual report (attached as Appendix A to the report), in accordance with 
the code of practice on Treasury Management.

In response to a question, the Finance Manager advised that Arlingclose were the 
Council’s Treasury Management Advisors and had been so for a number of years.

Page 11



In response to questions about the recent agreement of the Council regarding Full 
Council Transformation, the Director of Resources advised of the up-front investment 
required which would come from reserves.  However, savings were due to be delivered 
in respect of this in year two.

RECOMMENDED that annual Treasury Management Report for 2017 / 18 attached at 
APPENDIX 1 to these Minutes be approved.

Councillor Sismey returned to the chamber.

IN THE CHAIR : COUNCILLOR D M SISMEY

177. SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL ESTIMATE 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources, seeking Members’ 
approval of a supplementary capital estimate of £26,500 to purchase a replacement 
vehicle for use within the Parks and Countryside Team.  An overview to the project was 
attached as Appendix 1 to the report.

It was noted that if approved, the supplementary estimate would enable replacement of 
an elderly vehicle and ensure operations were not adversely effected.

Members were reminded that in accordance with revised guidance for capital projects, 
any budget not provisioned in the year it was requested would be put back into reserves 
until a project was reconsidered by Members.  This project did not progress as 
originally planned and therefore was being brought back to Members for 
reconsideration.

RESOLVED that a supplementary capital estimate of £26,500 to purchase a 
replacement vehicle for use within the Parks and Countryside Team be agreed.

178. STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL PLANNING PROCESS 

The Committee received the report of the Director of Resources seeking agreement to 
the annual Strategic and Financial Planning Process (S&FPP) for 2018 / 20 as set out in 
Appendix 1 to the report.

It was noted that the Strategic and Financial Planning Process aimed to ensure available 
resources were effectively directed towards achievement of the Council’s agreed 
corporate goals.

RESOLVED that the Strategic and Financial Planning Process for 2019 / 20, be 
approved.

179. PROPOSALS TO CHANGE TO OFFICE OPENING TIME TO PUBLIC 

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Customers and Community, 
updating Members on the outcome of a three month trial of a revised opening time to 

Page 12



the public of 10am on the last Wednesday of each month.  The report sought Members’ 
approval to make this revised opening time permanent.

The report provided background information regarding the trial and it was noted that it 
had been very successful with good use of the time to undertake staff briefings, 
meetings and training.

It was requested that the Committee receive quarterly or six monthly reports on the 
outcomes of these changes.

RECOMMENDED that on the last Wednesday of each month the Council Offices 
open at 10am to enable staff meetings and training to be undertaken during that time.

There being no further items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 8.28 pm.

D M SISMEY
CHAIRMAN

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Annual Treasury Report 2017-18

1. Background

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management Code (CIPFA’s TM 
Code) requires that authorities report on the performance of the treasury management function at 
least twice a year (mid-year and at year end). 

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/18 was approved by the Council on 22 March 
2018 (Minute No. 919 refers).  

The Council has invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks 
including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest rates.  This report 
covers treasury activity and the associated monitoring and control of risk. 

2. Economic Background provided by Arlingclose 

Economic background. 2017-18 was characterised by the push-pull from expectations of tapering of 
Quantitative Easing (QE) and the potential for increased policy rates in the US and Europe and from 
geopolitical tensions, which also had an impact.

The UK economy showed signs of slowing with latest estimates showing GDP, helped by an improving 
global economy, grew by 1.8% in calendar 2017, the same level as in 2016.  This was a far better 
outcome than the majority of forecasts following the EU Referendum in June 2016, but it also 
reflected the international growth momentum generated by the increasingly buoyant US economy and 
the re-emergence of the Eurozone economies. 

The inflationary impact of rising import prices, a consequence of the fall in sterling associated with the 
EU referendum result, resulted in year-on-year CPI rising to 3.1% in November before falling back to 
2.7% in February 2018. Consumers felt the squeeze as real average earnings growth, i.e. after 
inflation, turned negative before slowly recovering.  The labour market showed resilience as the 
unemployment rate fell back to 4.3% in January 2018.  The inherent weakness in UK business 
investment was not helped by political uncertainty following the surprise General Election in June and 
by the lack of clarity on Brexit, the UK and the EU only reaching an agreement in March 2018 on a 
transition which will now span Q2 2019 to Q4 2020. The Withdrawal Treaty is yet to be ratified by the 
UK parliament and those of the other 27 EU member states and new international trading 
arrangements are yet to be negotiated and agreed.

The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) increased Bank Rate by 0.25% in November 
2017. It was significant in that it was the first rate hike in ten years, although in essence the MPC 
reversed its August 2016 cut following the referendum result. The February Inflation Report indicated 
the MPC was keen to return inflation to the 2% target over a more conventional (18-24 month) horizon 
with ‘gradual’ and ‘limited’ policy tightening. Although in March two MPC members voted to increase 
policy rates immediately and the MPC itself stopped short of committing itself to the timing of the 
next increase in rates, the minutes of the meeting suggested that an increase in May 2018 was highly 
likely. 

In contrast, economic activity in the Eurozone gained momentum and although the European Central 
Bank removed reference to an ‘easing bias’ in its market communications and had yet to confirm its QE 
intention when asset purchases end in September 2018, the central bank appeared some way off 

Page 15



APPENDIX 1

normalising interest rates.  The US economy grew steadily and, with its policy objectives of price 
stability and maximising employment remaining on track, the Federal Reserve Open Market Committee 
(FOMC) increased interest rates in December 2017 by 0.25% and again in March, raising the policy rate 
target range to 1.50% - 1.75%. The Fed is expected to deliver two more increases in 2018 and a further 
two in 2019.  However, the imposition of tariffs on a broadening range of goods initiated by the US, 
which has led to retaliation by China, could escalate into a deep-rooted trade war having broader 
economic consequences including inflation rising rapidly, warranting more interest rate hikes.  

Financial markets: The increase in Bank Rate resulted in higher money markets rates: 1-month, 3-
month and 12-month LIBID rates averaged 0.32%, 0.39% and 0.69% and at 31st March 2018 were 0.43%, 
0.72% and 1.12% respectively.

Gilt yields displayed significant volatility over the twelve-month period with the change in sentiment in 
the Bank of England’s outlook for interest rates. The yield on the 5-year gilts which had fallen to 0.35% 
in mid-June rose to 1.65% by the end of March. 10-year gilt yields also rose from their lows of 0.93% in 
June to 1.65% by mid-February before falling back to 1.35% at year-end. 20-year gilt yields followed an 
even more erratic path with lows of 1.62% in June, and highs of 2.03% in February, only to plummet 
back down to 1.70% by the end of the financial year.

The FTSE 100 had a strong finish to calendar 2017, reaching yet another record high of 7688, before 
plummeting below 7000 at the beginning of 2018 in the global equity correction and sell-off.  

Credit background: 

Credit Metrics 

In the first quarter of the financial year, UK bank credit default swaps reached three-year lows on the 
announcement that the Funding for Lending Scheme, which gave banks access to cheaper funding, was 
being extended to 2018. For the rest of the year, CDS prices remained broadly flat. 

The rules for UK banks’ ring-fencing were finalised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and banks 
began the complex implementation process ahead of the statutory deadline of 1st January 2019.  As 
there was some uncertainty surrounding which banking entities the Council would be dealing with once 
ring-fencing was implemented and what the balance sheets of the ring-fenced and non ring-fenced 
entities would look would actually look like, in May 2017 Arlingclose advised adjusting downwards the 
maturity limit for unsecured investments to a maximum of 6 months.  The rating agencies had slightly 
varying views on the creditworthiness of the restructured entities.

Barclays was the first to complete its ring-fence restructure over the 2018 Easter weekend; wholesale 
deposits including local authority deposits will henceforth be accepted by Barclays Bank plc (branded 
Barclays International), which is the non ring-fenced bank. 

Money Market Fund regulation: The new EU regulations for Money Market Funds (MMFs) were finally 
approved and published in July and existing funds will have to be compliant by no later than 
21st January 2019.  The key features include Low Volatility Net Asset Value (LVNAV) Money Market 
Funds which will be permitted to maintain a constant dealing NAV, providing they meet strict new 
criteria and minimum liquidity requirements.  MMFs will not be prohibited from having an external 
fund rating (as had been suggested in draft regulations).  Arlingclose expects most of the short-term 
MMFs it recommends to convert to the LVNAV structure and awaits confirmation from each fund. 

Page 16



APPENDIX 1

Credit Rating developments 

The most significant change was the downgrade by Moody’s to the UK sovereign rating in September 
from Aa1 to Aa2 which resulted in subsequent downgrades to sub-sovereign entities including local 
authorities. 

Changes to credit ratings included Moody’s downgrade of Standard Chartered Bank’s long-term rating 
to A1 from Aa3 and the placing of UK banks’ long-term ratings on review to reflect the impending ring-
fencing of retail activity from investment banking (Barclays, HSBC and RBS were on review for 
downgrade; Lloyds Bank, Bank of Scotland and National Westminster Bank were placed on review for 
upgrade).  

Standard & Poor’s (S&P) revised upwards the outlook of various UK banks and building societies to 
positive or stable and simultaneously affirmed their long and short-term ratings, reflecting the 
institutions’ resilience, progress in meeting regulatory capital requirements and being better 
positioned to deal with uncertainties and potential turbulence in the run-up to the UK’s exit from the 
EU in March 2019. The agency upgraded Barclays Bank’s long-term rating to A from A- after the bank 
announced its plans for its entities post ring-fencing.  

Fitch revised the outlook on Nationwide Building Society to negative and later downgraded the 
institution’s long-term ratings due to its reducing buffer of junior debt. S&P revised the society’s 
outlook from positive to stable.

Other developments: 

In February, Arlingclose advised against lending to Northamptonshire County Council (NCC). NCC issued 
a section 114 notice in the light of severe financial challenge and the risk that it would not be in a 
position to deliver a balanced budget. 

In March, following Arlingclose’s advice, the Council removed RBS plc and National Westminster Bank 
from its counterparty list. This did not reflect any change to the creditworthiness of either bank, but a 
tightening in Arlingclose’s recommended minimum credit rating criteria to A- from BBB+ for FY 2018-
19. The current long-term ratings of RBS and NatWest do not meet this minimum criterion, although if 
following ring-fencing NatWest is upgraded, the bank would be reinstated on the Council’s lending list. 

Local Authority Regulatory Changes

Revised CIPFA Codes: CIPFA published revised editions of the Treasury Management and Prudential 
Codes in December 2017. The required changes from the 2011 Code will be incorporated into Treasury 
Management Strategies and monitoring reports.

The 2017 Prudential Code introduces the requirement for a Capital Strategy which provides a high-
level overview of the long-term context of capital expenditure and investment decisions and their 
associated risks and rewards along with an overview of how risk is managed for future financial 
sustainability. Where this strategy is produced and approved by full Council, the determination of the 
Treasury Management Strategy can be delegated to a committee. The Code also expands on the 
process and governance issues of capital expenditure and investment decisions. A Capital Strategy will 
be produced in 2018/19. 

In the 2017 Treasury Management Code the definition of ‘investments’ has been widened to include 
financial assets as well as non-financial assets held primarily for financial returns such as investment 
property. These, along with other investments made for non-treasury management purposes such as 
loans supporting service outcomes and investments in subsidiaries, must be discussed in the Capital 
Strategy or Investment Strategy.  Additional risks of such investments are to be set out clearly and the 
impact on financial sustainability is be identified and reported. 

Page 17



APPENDIX 1

MHCLG Investment Guidance and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): In February 2018 the MHCLG 
(Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) published revised Guidance on Local 
Government and Investments and Statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

Changes to the Investment Guidance include a wider definition of investments to include non-financial 
assets held primarily for generating income return and a new category called “loans” (e.g. temporary 
transfer of cash to a third party, joint venture, subsidiary or associate). The Guidance introduces the 
concept of proportionality, proposes additional disclosure for borrowing solely to invest and also 
specifies additional indicators. Investment strategies must detail the extent to which service delivery 
objectives are reliant on investment income and a contingency plan should yields on investments fall. 

The definition of prudent MRP has been changed to “put aside revenue over time to cover the CFR”; it 
cannot be a negative charge and can only be zero if the CFR is nil or negative. Guidance on asset lives 
has been updated, applying to any calculation using asset lives. Any change in MRP policy cannot 
create an overpayment; the new policy must be applied to the outstanding CFR going forward only. 

MiFID II:  As a result of the second Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II), from 3rd 
January 2018 local authorities were automatically treated as retail clients but could “opt up” to 
professional client status, providing certain criteria was met which includes having an investment 
balance of at least £10 million and the person(s) authorised to make investment decisions on behalf of 
the council have at least a year’s relevant professional experience. In addition, the regulated financial 
services firms to whom this directive applies have had to assess that that person(s) have the expertise, 
experience and knowledge to make investment decisions and understand the risks involved.  

The Council has met the conditions to opt up to professional status and has done so in order to 
maintain its former MiFID II status prior to January 2018. The Council will continue to have access to 
products including money market funds, pooled funds, treasury bills, bonds, shares and to financial 
advice. 

Local Context

At 31/03/2018 the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes as measured by the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) was zero. 

At 31/03/2018, the Council had no borrowing and £11.5 m of investments.  The Council may however 
have to borrow to pre fund future years requirements or unexpected capital expenditure that occurs in 
the year providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for borrowing of £10m.

The Council is currently debt free and its approved capital expenditure plans do not imply any need to 
borrow over the forecast period.  Investments are forecast to fall to £9m as capital receipts are used 
to finance capital expenditure and reserves are used to finance the revenue budget over the next 
three years.

Investment Activity

The Council holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure 
plus balances and reserves held.  During 2017/18, the Council’s investment balance ranged between 
£11 and £22 million due to timing differences between income and expenditure. The year-end 
investment position and the year-on-year change is shown in the table below

Page 18



APPENDIX 1

Investment Activity in 2017 / 18

Investments
Balance on 
01/04/2017

£’000

Investments 
Made
£’000

Maturities/ 
Investments 
Sold £’000

Balance on 
31/03/2018

£’000
Short term fixed 
Investments 2,000 6,000 8,000 0

Cash Accounts 2,000 0 0 2,000

Money Market Funds 2,500 44,000 43,000 3,500

Certificates of Deposit 2,000 2,000 3,000 1,000

LAMIT Property Fund 3,000 0 0 3,000

Investec Diversified 
Income fund 0 2,000 0 2,000

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 11,500 11,500

Increase/ (Decrease) in 
Investments £m -

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Council to invest its funds prudently, and to 
have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return, 
or yield.  The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between 
risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably 
low investment income.

In furtherance of these objectives, and given the increasing risk and low returns from short-term 
unsecured bank investments, the Council diversified into higher yielding asset classes during 2017/18. 
£2m that is available for longer-term investment was moved from bank and building society deposits 
into the Investec Diversified Income Fund. As a result the average rate of return has increased by 1.15% 
to 3.04%. 

Compliance Report

All treasury management activities undertaken during 2017/18 complied fully with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice and the Council’s approved Treasury Management Strategy. 

The Council continues to be debt free so compliance with the authorised limit and operational 
boundary for external debt is confirmed.

Page 19



APPENDIX 1

Treasury Management Indicators

The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the following 
indicators.

Security: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring the 
value-weighted average credit score of its investment portfolio.  This is calculated by applying a score 
to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of 
each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score based on their perceived risk.

31.3.18 
Actual

2017/18 
Threshold

Complied

Portfolio average credit score 2.7 6 

Liquidity: The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring 
the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling three-month period, 
without additional borrowing. 

31.3.18 
Actual

2017/18 
Target

Complied

Total cash available within 3 months 5m 5.5m 

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk.  
The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as the amount of 
interest payable, should borrowing become necessary, would be:

31.3.18 
Actual

2017/18 
Limit

Complied

Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure 0 100% 

Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure 0 100% 

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed for at least 12 
months, measured from the start of the financial year or the transaction date if later.  All other 
instruments are classed as variable rate.

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing 
risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate should borrowing become 
necessary, would be:

31.3.18 
Actual

Upper 
Limit

Lower 
Limit

Complied

Under 12 months 0% 100% 0% 

12 months and within 24 months 0% 100% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 0% 100% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 0% 100% 0% 

Page 20



APPENDIX 1

10 years and above 0% 100% 0% 

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year.  The maturity date of borrowing is the 
earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.  

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days: The purpose of this indicator is to control 
the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments.  
The limits on the long-term principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Limit on principal invested beyond year end 1m 1m 1m

Complied 

There were no investments made beyond 364 days in 2017/18

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item no. 6
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
31 JULY 2018

CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide an update on corporate health and safety activity from 1 April to 30 June 
2018 (quarter 1).

1.2 To show progress with the health and safety action plan for 2018/19 (attached as 
APPENDIX 1 to this report).

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

(i) that accident and incident statistics for quarter one be noted; 

(ii) that progress with the health and safety action plan (APPENDIX 1) be noted.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 There were four reported accidents and one near miss during quarter one:

 A child was taken to hospital after injuring her toes and losing a toenail whilst 
playing with the sand collector in the play site in Promenade Park.  The 
equipment was checked by a maintenance officer who found it to be in full 
working order with no faults.    

 A Police officer was hurt as they left the Council offices when they hit their 
elbow on the door keep.  The keep was rounded off to prevent a similar type 
accident re-occurring.

 A member of staff received a cut to the knee when they tripped over whilst 
working off site: no further action was taken.

 A member of staff received two cuts and grazing to their right hand when 
using the filing cabinets in the basement: no further action was taken.

 A near miss occurred when a member of staff was exiting a kitchen with a tray 
of hot drinks when another member of staff with a sack barrow collided with 
the kitchen door.  The matter was reported to facilities to see if anything could 
be done.

3.2 There have been no incidents of unacceptable behaviour reported during quarter 1.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item no. 6

3.3 Progress with the health and safety action plan for 2018 / 19 can be seen in 
APPENDIX 1.

3.4 Following the legionella audit last year, the Corporate Leadership Team agreed an 
action plan to improve the management of this risk.  The Council’s contractor has 
given a commitment to update all the legionella risk assessments and the drawn 
schematics of the Council’s buildings showing the water facilities.

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 There have been no significant increases in the number of accidents or the seriousness 
of accidents.  

4.2 Work on the action plan for 2018-19 has begun.  Procedures have been reviewed to 
ensure that they are up to date and as a reminder to staff.

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 Managing health and safety well helps protect the workforce and wider community 
who may be affected by the Council’s activities ensuring that communities stay safe 
and healthy.

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – Good health and safety management reduces the 
number of accidents and injuries to both customers and employees alike.  
Reduced staff absence resulting from work related injuries or ill health ensures 
a better service is provided to customers.

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None.

(iii) Impact on Risk – Poor management of health and safety can lead to 
accidents, injuries, occupational ill health or dangerous occurrences.  This may 
result in avoidable sickness absence and these incidents may be investigated 
by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE).  This could result in prosecution 
with fines or custodial sentences and an award of costs if found guilty by the 
courts.  In addition the HSE has adopted a “Fee for Fault” policy in which it 
recharges the cost of investigations if liability is identified.  Civil claims by 
individuals could lead to significant pay outs which in turn could lead to 
increased insurance premiums.  It can also lead to poor publicity, reputational 
damage and impacts on staff morale.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – No additional resources required, 
however, by managing health and safety, there should be less impact on 
financial resources as identified in (iii) above.

(v) Impact of Resources (human) – No additional resources are required, 
however, by preventing accidents and ill health, there should be less impact on 
human resources.

Page 24



Agenda Item no. 6

(vi) Impact on the Environment – Good health and safety management of the 
workplace, for example, management of asbestos and legionella, helps provide 
a safer and healthier environment in which to live and work.

Background Papers: accident and incident data (data protected)

Enquiries to: Gill Gibson, Health and Safety Adviser, (Tel: 01621 875813).

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1
HEALTH AND SAFETY ACTION PLAN 2018 / 19

Subject Action Required Timescale Progress 

Health and 
Safety 
Arrangements

To review all the corporate health and safety 
procedures falling due during 2018-19

 Accident and Near Miss Reporting
 Asbestos Arrangements
 Consultation Arrangements
 Care of Substances Hazardous to 

Health (COSHH)
 Fire
 First Aid Arrangements

 Bomb and Terrorism
 Legionella Arrangements
 Manual Handling
 Slips, Trips and Falls
 Sun Exposure
 Unacceptable Behaviour
 Work Place Transport

 Display Screen Equipment
 Lone Working 
 New and Expectant Mothers
 Person Protective Equipment
 Risk Assessment
 Workplace Arrangements

June 2018

September 2018

December 2018

 Sun exposure procedure has been reviewed and 
amended, providing more information

 Fire arrangements have been circulated to all 
relevant managers so that they can be reviewed, 
updated and staff informed of the arrangements

 Accident and Near Miss Reporting and 
Consultation Arrangements have been reviewed 
and updated.  Health and safety representatives 
have been asked to comment on these procedures 
by then end of July 2018.

P
age 27



APPENDIX 1

Subject Action Required Timescale Progress 

Risk 
Assessments

To review all service risk assessments

 Community Protection Officers
 Customer Services
 Environmental Health
 Facilities
 Finance
 Housing
 IT
 Legal and Democratic Services
 Parks
 Planning and Building Control
 People, Policy and Performance 
 Revenues and Benefits

Throughout the 
year and all by 
the end March 
2019

Risk 
Assessment 
Audit

To review risk assessments to assess 
whether they are suitable and sufficient December 2018

Training

To deliver health and safety training where 
required, to  include:

 Lone working

 Refresher first aid training

 Developing an e-learning module for 
manual handling (carried forward 
from last year’s work plan)

 To complete development of an  e-
learning module for display screen 
equipment

November 2018 

As and when 
required

December 2018

October 2018

P
age 28



Agenda Item no. 7
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
31 JULY 2018

BUDGETARY CONTROL (APRIL – JUNE 2018)

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide Members with information in relation to financial performance over the 
period 1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That Members review and comment on the contents of this report.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

This report is for Members’ information only.

3.1 Revenue Budgets

3.1.1 APPENDIX 1 provides information in relation to controllable revenue budgets.  This 
information is presented by Directorate.  The appendix also provides information in 
relation to total expenditure and total income; this is to assist in understanding 
whether expenditure variances are caused by over or underspends or income is either 
exceeding or not meeting expectations.  APPENDIX 1A gives the summary budget 
data for those budgets over £10,000 on a service line basis.  APPENDIX 1 shows the 
following:

 Current controllable budget – the current year annual budget amount as 
approved by the Council on 8 February 2018; this figure will include any 
adjustments to budget levels such as virements movements or supplementary 
estimates which have been approved.

 Outturn to date – the actual expenditure or income from 1 April 2018 to 30 
June 2018.

 Variance to budget – this shows the difference between the annual budget 
amount and the outturn to date.

 Current budget utilised (%) – this shows the outturn as a percentage of the 
current budget.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item no. 7

3.1.2 Total expenditure and income over the period 1 April 2018 to 30 June 2018 totals 
£1,255,785; this represents 18% of the total controllable budget of £7,034,116.

Directorate

Current 
Controllable 

Budget 

Profiled 
controllable 
expenditure 

Outturn 
to Date 

Variance to 
Profiled 
Budget 

% of current 
Controllable 

Budget 
Utilised 

 £ £ £  

Chief Executive 973,800 225,800 236,352 10,552 24%

Resources Directorate 2,355,700 741,076 659,985 (81,091) 28%
Customers and 
Community Directorate 1,866,416 72,729 68,353 (4,376) 4%

Planning and Regulatory 
Directorate 1,838,200 350,935 291,094 (59,840) 16%

TOTAL 7,034,116 1,390,540 1,255,785 (134,755) 18%

3.1.3 The report provides information for the first quarter of the 2018 / 19 financial year; if 
expenditure or income are utilised or received evenly throughout the year, we would 
expect outturn to be 25% of the annual budget.  However, budgets have been 
reprofiled for key items to reflect the expected income/expenditure.  

3.1.4 APPENDIX 1A shows both the actual variance to profiled budget and % variance to 
annual controllable budget on a cost centre basis.   Where budgets aren’t in line with 
expectation, variances relate to annual payments such as leases and grants that will 
not follow any profiling; or demand led budgets such as maintenance.  The following 
areas are currently demonstrating significant variances against the annual controllable 
budgets or the profiled budgets:

Chief Executive and Resources Directorate

 Committee Services are showing an overspend due to a one-off exit package 
and interim agency costs that will be covered with salary underspends and 
reserve contributions.  

 Council Offices are £30,000 underspent due to demand led budgets, such as 
utility bills and responsive maintenance.

 Elections canvassing is currently in progress so there will be expenditure for 
Quarter Two (Q2).

 Internal Audits Quarter One (Q1) payment has not yet been made.

 Finance underspends relate to the asset revaluation contract and procurement 
hub subscription which currently have not had any demands for payments for 
2018 / 19.

Customers and Community Directorate

 Garden Waste Subscriptions are collected annually at the start of the year and 
total £437,000, therefore reducing the amount of expenditure incurred in the 
first quarter of the year.

Page 30



Agenda Item no. 7

 Administration Grants relating to Business Rates, Housing Benefits and 
Council Tax are one off annual payments.

 Highway Rangers have not received any income, therefore only the 
expenditure is showing against the net budget.

 Maldon Promenade Income is considered in section 3.2.3 below.
 

Planning and Regulatory Services Directorate

 Salaries are underspent due to vacancies, this is considered further in 
paragraph 3.2.1.2.

 There is £140,000 of one-off grant income relating to Housing and MAGNOX 
that has been received in the first quarter that reduces the overall expenditure 
against annual budget.

3.2 Key Areas of Note

3.2.1 Vacancy Savings

3.2.1.1 Current salary and temporary staff expenditure for the period totals £1,881,454 
against a current budget totalling £8,073,200 (this represents 23.3% of the total salary 
budget).  

3.2.1.2 APPENDIX 2 shows that there is currently a £140,505 underspend, 63% of this 
variance relates to vacant posts within the Planning and Regulatory Services 
Directorate, particularly across Building Control, Development Management and 
Enforcement (£75,396). 

3.2.1.3 With a recruitment freeze currently in place, salary vacancies are expected to increase 
over Q2.

3.2.2 Agency Expenditure

3.2.2.1 Over the period to 30 June 2018, the total costs of Agency staff that have been 
included within the salary variances above are as follows: -

Service Expenditure to 30 
June 2018 (£) 

Committee Services 17,210
IT 7,650
Building Control 13,502
TOTAL 38,363 

3.2.2.2 As previously agreed with members, more detail on agency expenditure will be 
provided within the Q1 personnel statistics report. 

Page 31



Agenda Item no. 7

3.2.3 Major Sources of Income

3.2.3.1 The Council is dependent on income from fees and charges to balance the budget.  
The table below details the main income budgets and income received for the period 
to 30 June 2018 and the comparative information for the same period in 2017 / 18:

Area of Income Current 
Budget £

2018/19 
Income 

to 30 
June £

% of 
Current 
Budget

Projected
Outturn

2017/18 
Income to 
30 June £

Land Charges 121,900  32,069  26.31 122,300  32,388
Planning Development 
Fees

782,600  190,002  24.28 765,300  140,226

Pre Application Advice 44,200  17,761  40.18 79,600  12,473
Planning Performance 
Agreements

 42,000 500    1.19 42,000           -

Building Control  135,300  41,675  30.80 166,400  40,521
Cemeteries 92,900 31,688 34.11 95,000 21,356
Investment Income  228,300  66,838  29.28 228,300  32,000
Town Centre Car Parks  702,200  165,294  23.54 713,800  174,534
Prom Car Parks  374,200  123,552  33.02 372,000  143,590
Splash Park  110,000  33,696  30.63 130,000  43,018
TOTAL  2,633,600 703,075 26.70 2,724,800  640,557

3.2.3.2 Key headlines are:-

 Overall, 26.7% of the expected annual income has been received.

 Of these, the splash park and prom car parks are seasonal, and therefore 
income would be expected to be exceeding 25%.

 Cemeteries income is exceeding budget; however, this cannot be predicted, 
therefore the projected outturn has been marginally increased.

 The projected outturn for planning income reflects the position if demand 
continues at the current levels.  

 Planning Performance agreements are not meeting budget; however, the 
department are confident that this income will be received in the financial 
year, therefore the projected outturn has not been amended.

3.3 Capital Projects

3.3.1 APPENDIX 3 provides details of the capital projects for the 2018 / 19 financial year.  

3.3.2 As part of the 2018 / 19 budget process, the capital programme was reviewed and 
approved.  The total programme to be carried out in 2018 / 19 totalled £804,000.  

3.3.3 Eight Capital projects totalling £253,000 have been carried forward from 2017 / 18 
into the 2018 / 19 programme, as they were on-going or were committed to at year 
end but had yet to start, increasing the total programme to £1,057,000.

Page 32



Agenda Item no. 7

3.3.4 Total expenditure for the period to 30 June was £158,000 this reflects 15% of the 
overall 2018 / 19 capital budget of £1,057,000.

3.3.5 All projects are anticipated to be completed in 2018 / 19 and officers will continue to 
monitor progress.

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 There are currently no concerns over financial performance to budget.  Income is 
performing as expected and expenditure variances are relating to timing of 
transactions and works.

4.2 Capital projects are progressing, and the programme is expected to be completed 
within this financial year.  

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 This report links to the corporate goal of ‘delivering good quality, cost effective and 
valued services’.

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – None directly.

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None identified.

(iii) Impact on Risk – There are no corporate risk issues associated with this 
report.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – Variances from the budget will impact 
upon the level of balances and/or capital reserves available in the future.  

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Carrie Cox, Finance Manager, (Tel: 01621 875799).

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Grand Total  Current Controllable Budget  Outturn to Date  Variance to Current 

Controllable Budget 

 % of current Controllable 

Budget Utilised 

Total Expenditure              31,231,216                5,511,438 -           25,719,778 18%

Total Income -           24,197,100 -             4,255,653              19,941,447 18%

TOTAL                7,034,116                1,255,785 -             5,778,331 18%

Chief Executive  Current Controllable Budget  Outturn to Date  Variance to Current 

Controllable Budget 

 % of current Controllable 

Budget Utilised 

Total Expenditure                   995,600                   258,152 -                737,448 26%

Total Income -                  21,800 -                  21,800                            -   100%

TOTAL for Chief Executive                   973,800                   236,352 -                737,448 24%

Resources Directorate  Current Controllable Budget  Outturn to Date  Variance to Current 

Controllable Budget 

 % of current Controllable 

Budget Utilised 

Total Expenditure                2,804,900                   707,642 -             2,097,258 25%

Total Income -                449,200 -                  47,657                   401,543 11%

TOTAL for Resources Directorate                2,355,700                   659,985 -             1,695,715 28%

Customers and Community Directorate  Current Controllable Budget  Outturn to Date  Variance to Current 

Controllable Budget 

 % of current Controllable 

Budget Utilised 

Total Expenditure              24,121,316                3,846,253 -           20,275,063 16%

Total Income -           22,254,900 -             3,777,900              18,477,000 17%

TOTAL for Customers & Community 

Directorate

               1,866,416                     68,353 -             1,798,063 4%

-23525748 22,254,900                          

Planning and Regulatory Directorate  Current Controllable Budget  Outturn to Date  Variance to Current 

Controllable Budget 

 % of current Controllable 

Budget Utilised 

Total Expenditure                3,309,400                   699,390 -             2,610,010 21%

Total Income -             1,471,200 -                408,296                1,062,904 28%

TOTAL for Planning & Regulatory Directorate                1,838,200                   291,094 -             1,547,106 16%

Quarter 1, therefore expect 25% of budgets to be spent

Budget Control Summary 2018/19 (April - June)

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1A

Budgets over £10,000

Budget Value Profiled budget 

Outturn 

Year to Date

Variance to 

profiled budget

Outturn as % of 

full Budget.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Corporate Core 557,700 122,742 126,485 3,744 22.68%

Corporate Management 165,300 41,325 44,221 2,896 26.75%

Democratic Representation & Mgt 250,800 61,733 65,646 3,912 26.17%

RESOURCES DIRECTORATE

Elections 93,100 23,267 22,488 (779) 24.15%

Policy & Comms 220,300 55,050 53,669 (1,381) 24.36%

Training 75,100 18,775 9,451 (9,324) 12.58%

Human Resources 191,500 47,858 46,520 (1,338) 24.29%

Apprentices ( 2017/18) 39,800 9,950 5,389 (4,561) 13.54%

Committee Services 320,500 80,100 109,295 29,195 34.10%

General Office Support 42,100 10,525 5,322 (5,203) 12.64%

Internal Audit & Perf Review 70,400 17,600 0 (17,600) 0.00%

Finance 402,000 100,500 80,577 (19,923) 20.04%

IT Services 741,400 268,364 273,340 4,976 36.87%

Council Offices 408,700 183,510 149,349 (34,161) 36.54%

Reprographics Unit 25,600 6,400 2,040 (4,360) 7.97%

Telephones & Reception 39,500 9,875 1,580 (8,295) 4.00%

Electoral Registration 38,800 9,700 (1,988) (11,688) -5.12%

Misc. Land & Property (30,300) (7,575) (7,126) 449 23.52%

Springfield Industrial Estate (113,800) (40,573) (40,724) (151) 35.79%

Investment Interest (228,300) (57,075) (57,384) (309) 25.14%

Election Management 12,700 3,175 0 (3,175) 0.00%

CUSTOMER & COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE

Customer Services 353,300 88,292 71,124 (17,168) 20.13%

Revenues and Benefits 671,200 167,758 157,935 (9,823) 23.53%

Leisure & Community 313,700 78,358 70,378 (7,980) 22.43%

Environmental Waste 172,600 43,142 44,093 952 25.55%

Parks Operational Services 688,300 172,042 158,010 (14,032) 22.96%

Parks Rangers 290,500 72,625 85,612 12,987 29.47%

N.N.D.R. Collection (95,100) (525) (1,052) (527) 1.11%

Housing Benefits Admin (132,800) (33,200) (14,693) 18,507 11.06%

Rent Allowances (242,600) (155,000) (75,047) 79,953 30.93%

Council Tax Benefit Admin (50,000) (50,000) (55,900) (5,900) 111.80%

Council Tax Collection (78,800) (19,700) (32,800) (13,100) 41.62%

Civil Emergencies 33,900 8,475 1,205 (7,270) 3.55%

Rivers (121,800) (42,800) (61,171) (18,371) 50.22%

Street Naming 11,400 2,850 335 (2,515) 2.94%

Tourism 14,400 3,600 4,414 814 30.65%

Tourist Information Centre 150,100 33,208 43,259 10,051 28.82%

Burnham TIC 14,300 6,475 6,886 411 48.15%

Blackwater Leisure Centre (599,700) (149,925) (153,503) (3,578) 25.60%

Dengie Hundred Sports Centre 137,000 34,250 33,288 (962) 24.30%

Riverside Park (20,300) (5,075) (5,965) (890) 29.39%

Brickhouse Farm 26,300 6,575 8,562 1,987 32.55%

Maldon Promenade (488,500) (127,375) (173,288) (45,913) 35.47%

Other Parks and Open Spaces 40,300 10,408 14,087 3,679 34.96%

Verges (13,600) 6,850 0 (6,850) 0.00%

Play Provision 35,800 8,950 14,019 5,069 39.16%

Highway Rangers - ECC (20,800) (5,200) 14,260 19,460 -68.56%

Maldon Town Centre Car Parks (693,100) (173,275) (142,430) 30,845 20.55%

Public Conveniences 86,100 21,525 10,245 (11,280) 11.90%

Cemeteries (93,300) (23,325) (52,539) (29,214) 56.31%

Community Safety 32,100 8,025 5,427 (2,598) 16.91%

Community Safety LAA 55,600 3,175 17,624 14,449 31.70%

Community Grants 73,500 38,700 36,750 (1,950) 50.00%

Street Cleansing 477,100 119,275 115,114 (4,161) 24.13%

Waste Services 821,800 (80,808) (77,741) 3,067 -9.46%

PLANNING AND REGULATORY DIRECTORATE

Environmental Health 476,200 118,258 117,195 (1,063) 24.61%

Housing 573,800 143,267 135,358 (7,909) 23.59%

Corporate Fraud and Enforcement 215,500 53,825 34,261 (19,564) 15.90%

Economic Development, Partnerships & Projects136,400 33,942 33,498 (444) 24.56%

Page 37



Appendix 1A

Planning Policy Services 401,900 100,358 87,650 (12,708) 21.81%

Planning Admin Services 274,600 67,250 66,519 (731) 24.22%

Development Management Services 610,500 152,758 138,910 (13,848) 22.75%

Building Control Services 212,300 53,717 45,767 (7,950) 21.56%

Land Charges (106,700) (29,858) (29,930) (72) 28.05%

Planning Policy 26,500 15,200 15,150 (50) 57.17%

Development Management  (768,400) (206,808) (210,148) (3,339) 27.35%

Building Control (Fee Related) (131,300) (32,962) (41,675) (8,712) 31.74%

Economic Development 12,500 1,100 1,203 103 9.62%

Temp Events and Personal Licences (27,700) (9,044) (9,544) (500) 34.45%

Taxis and Private Hire Licences (17,300) (6,279) (4,297) 1,982 24.84%

Pest Control (28,800) (25,006) (17,284) 7,722 60.01%

Food Safety/Commercial Disease 21,700 2,117 388 (1,729) 1.79%

Environmental Protection 14,200 (6,350) 4,949 11,299 34.85%

Homeless & Housing Advice (35,000) (74,700) (76,941) (2,241) 219.83%

Private Sector Renewal (27,500) (300) (304) (4) 1.11%

TOTAL 7,005,200 1,384,061 1,245,375 (138,685) 17.78%

Page 38



SALARIES APPENDIX 2

Cost Centre Budget Profile Actual
(Saving) / 

Overspend 3

2018/2019 30-Jun 2018/2019

Chief Executive

101 Corporate Core 573,700 147,084 146,626 (458)

Service Area Total 573,700 147,084 146,626 (458)

Resources Directorate

102 Election Management 92,800 23,200 22,420 (780)

103 Policy & Comms 206,200 51,550 51,119 (431)

105 Human Resources 170,400 42,600 41,748 (852)

106 Apprentices 21,800 5,450 1,186 (4,264)

108 Committee Services 303,000 75,750 76,394 644

109 General Office Support 21,300 5,325 5,322 (3)

113  Finance 312,700 78,175 76,506 (1,669)

119 ICT Services 395,100 98,775 91,597 (7,178)

121 Council Offices 228,100 57,025 46,033 (10,992)

Service Area Total 1,751,400 437,850 412,325 (25,525)

Customer & Communities Directorate

110 Customer Contact Centre 373,900 93,475 93,425 (50)

114 Revenues & Benefits 945,100 236,275 214,177 (22,098)

118 Leisure and Countryside Management 286,900 71,725 72,510 785

133 Environmental Waste 172,500 43,125 44,019 894

141 Parks Operational 526,600 131,650 126,074 (5,576)

153 Community Rangers 341,200 85,300 83,178 (2,122)

325 Maldon TIC 120,200 30,050 29,628 (422)

330 Burnham TIC 5,800 1,450 4,658 3,208

523 Highway Rangers 55,600 13,900 13,871 (29)

563 Community Safety 69,900 17,475 17,492 17

Service Area Total 2,897,700 724,425 699,032 (25,393)

Planning Services Directorate

132 Environmental Health 468,700 117,175 115,248 (1,927)

134 Housing 569,300 142,325 135,173 (7,152)

163  Enforcement 209,500 52,375 33,354 (19,021)

164 Economic Development 134,000 33,500 32,764 (736)

165 Planning Policy Services 398,400 99,600 87,546 (12,054)

166 Planning Admin Services 268,500 67,125 66,524 (601)

167 Development Control 598,300 149,575 123,475 (26,100)

168 Building Control 203,700 50,925 29,387 (21,538)

Service Area Total 2,850,400 712,600 623,471 (89,129)

TOTAL 8,073,200 2,021,959 1,881,454 (140,505)

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

Due start date
Due completion 

date
Narrative - July Update

Vehicle & Plant Replacement

New Rangers Vehicle 18/19 12 0 Not started Oct-18 Nov-18 Commence procurement in Q3 
Senior Community Protection 

officer
Yes

Information & Communication 

Technology

PC and Printer Replacement Programme 

18/19
45 4 In progress Apr-18 Aug-18

Further laptops to be ordered by 

the end of July and Multi functional 

devices to be purchased.

Director of Resources Yes

Telephony Review/Upgrade 18/19 5 0 Not started Oct-18 Mar-19
Investment to take place in 

Quarter 3 as part of ignite.
Director of Resources Yes

County Superfast Broadband Contribution 45 0 Not started Aug-18 Mar-19

This is a contribution to an ECC 

led project, funds have not yet 

been requested. 

Director of Resources Yes

E-Mail replacement - Upgrade of 

Exchange and Enterprise Vault
18 0 In progress Apr-18 Sep-18

Office 365 has now been rolled out 

to all officers.
Director of Resources Yes

Maldon Promenade

All weather Car Parking improvements 99 82 In progress Apr-18 Jul-18
Works complete in main areas.   

Remaining budget will be required.
Maintenance Officer Yes

New accessible play site 18/19 48 0 In progress Jun-18 Mar-19

Design work is progressing as 

planned and will be subject to 

consultation during July and 

August. 

Countryside and Coast Manager Yes

CCTV Upgrade Prom 9 0 Procurement process Apr-18 Mar-19

Part of Chelmsford procurement 

process, likely to be completed in 

Quarter 3. Installed Quarter 4. 

Senior Community Protection 

officer
Yes

New Splash Park Elements 18/19 10 0 Not started Nov-18 Mar-19

Waiting until winter 2018 to carry 

out procurement exercise for 

2018/19 and 2019/20 works. i.e. 

order £20Ks worth at same point 

in time for installation before 

summer 19.  

Maintenance Officer Yes

Tip Road 18/19 80 0 Not started Jul-18 Jan-19

Meeting on site 5 July 2018 to 

determine specification and then 

basis of formal quotations. 

Maintenance Officer Yes

Parks & Open Spaces

CCTV - B-O-C, BHF,WMCC 30 Procurement process Apr-18 Mar-19

Part of Chelmsford procurement 

process, likely to be completed in 

Quarter 3. Installed Quarter 4. 

Senior Community Protection 

officer
Yes

Riverside Park information boards and 

signage
20 0 In progress Apr-18 Oct-18

Order placed, delivery due 

summer
Tourism and Events Manager Yes

Elections

Replacement of Polling booths 25 0 In progress Apr-18 Jul-18
Order placed and delivered, 

invoice outstanding.
Elections Manager Yes

Car Parks

Car Park Machines Prom & Maldon Town 

Centre  18/19
115 0 Procurement process Apr-18 Oct-18

Meeting held with procurement. 

Intending to purchase through 

Braintree Framework. 

Community & Living Group 

Manager
yes

CCTV High Street & Car Park System 

Upgrade
30 0 Procurement process Apr-18 Mar-19

Part of Chelmsford procurement 

process, likely to be completed in 

Quarter 3. Installed Quarter 4. 

Senior Park Ranger Yes

Cemeteries

Heybridge Cemetery Chapel Roof 18/19 24 0 Not started Apr-18 Dec-18

Project plan to be developed by 

the end of Aug, procurement Sept, 

delivery before Christmas.  

Countryside and Coast Manager Yes

Environmental Waste

Purchase of bins 22 0 In progress Apr-18 Jul-18
Final batch due to be delivered in 

July.
Waste Manager Yes

Housing

Disabled Facility Grants 420 72 In progress Apr-18 Mar-19

Grant applications being assessed 

and processed - ongoing through 

the year.

Senior Housing Officer Yes

Capital Programme 

2018/19
Total Budget

(£000)

Likely to 

be Spent 

in 

2018/19?

Responsible Officer - Job Title

Expenditure to 30 

June 2018

(£000)

Project Status

Q1 Appendix 3

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item no. 8
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
31 JULY 2018

SUPPLEMENTARY ESTIMATES, VIREMENTS AND USE OF RESERVES: 24 
MAY - 27 JUNE 2018 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To report virements and supplementary estimates agreed under delegated powers to 
this Committee.

1.2 To inform Members of procurement exemptions that has been granted in the period.

1.3 To inform members of requested drawdowns on reserves.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

(i) That the procurement exemption granted during the period, as detailed in 
paragraph 3.4.1 below is reviewed and commented on;

(ii) That the use of reserves as detailed in paragraph 3.5.1 below is reviewed and 
commented on;

(iii) That the use of the transformation reserve of £56,464 as set out in paragraph 
3.5.2 below is agreed.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 Rules and Regulations

3.1.1 The approval and reporting arrangements in relation to virements and supplementary 
estimates are set out in the Financial Regulations and Financial Procedures   These are 
as follows:

Virements (movements) within the same budget head:

 Agreed by the relevant Director and the Director of Resources.

Virements between different budget heads:

 Up to £20,000 – Director and Director of Resources and reported in monthly 
Members Bulletin;

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item no. 8

 Over £20,000 up to £50,000 – Director, Director of Resources, in Consultation 
with relevant Standing Committee Chairman and reported to the next Finance 
and Corporate Services Committee;

 Over £50,000 - the Finance and Corporate Services Committee.

Supplementary estimates: 

 Up to £20,000 – Director, Director of Resources and Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Finance and Corporate Services 
Committee and the Leader of the Council and reported to the next meeting of 
the Finance and Corporate Services Committee;

 Over £20,000 – the Finance and Corporate Services Committee.

3.1.2 The Contract Procedure Rules provide information in relation to procurement 
exemptions.  The exemption enables the council to waive any requirements within the 
contract procedure rules for specific projects.

3.1.3 Procurement exemptions should be signed by the Officer and countersigned by the 
Director of Resources and where appropriate the Chairman of the Finance and 
Corporate Services Committee.

3.2 Virements

3.2.1 There were no virement requests to report.

3.3 Supplementary Estimates

3.3.1 There were no supplementary estimates to report.

3.4 Procurement Exemptions

3.4.1 The Elections department were granted a procurement exemption for the automated 
household registration form response system.  The system allows households to return 
their forms via the internet, phone or Short Message Service (SMS).  Extensive 
enquiries were made, and there is no other contractor who provides the automated 
service. 

3.5 Reserves Requests

3.5.1 Two requests for the use of the transformation reserve have been approved by the 
Director of Resources in the first quarter.  £12,000 was approved for the Ignite 
opportunity assessment and associated expenses.  £10,000 was approved for financial 
modelling and advice on the commercial pipe line projects.  At the end of the current 
quarter £10,779 and £2,500 of expenditure has been incurred respectively. 

3.5.2 A request for the use of the transformation reserve of £56,464 is made to cover the 
extension of the Information Governance Officer post until 30 November 2018.  The 
extension is required in order to fulfil the statutory requirements of the General Data 
Protection Regulations (GDPR).  Permanent recruitment will take place once roles 
and responsibilities have been confirmed as part of the implementation of the Future 
Model. 

Page 44



Agenda Item no. 8

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 The procurement exemption process has been utilised over the period to waive the 
procurement requirements as set out in the Contract Procedure Rules.

4.2 The use of earmarked reserves ensures that one-off specific expenditure demands can 
be met from specific funding without utilising General Fund balances.

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 The adherence to the Financial Regulations and Financial Procedures contributes 
towards the corporate goal of ‘Delivering good quality, cost effective and valuable 
services’.

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – None.

(ii) Impact on Equalities – None.

(iii) Impact on Risk – None identified.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – These are discussed above.

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – None identified.

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None identified.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Emma Foy, Director of Resources, (Tel: 01621 875762).

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item no. 9
Our Vision: To make Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
to
FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE
31 JULY 2018

AIR QUALITY UPDATE AND PROPOSED DECLARATION OF AN AIR QUALITY 
MANAGEMENT AREA ON MARKET HILL, MALDON 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To receive a reference and recommendation from the Community Services 
Committee.
 

1.2 To approve a Supplementary Estimate of £20,000 for the production of an Air Quality 
Action Plan. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

(i) That the a Supplementary Estimate of £20,000 be approved to enable the 
production of an Air Quality Action Plan to comply with legislation;

 
(ii) That the concerns raised by the Community Services Committee and the 

responses from Officers to those concerns be received and noted.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 This matter was considered by the Community Services Committee on 10 July 2018 
and a copy of the report considered and its appendix is attached as APPENDIX A to 
this report.

3.2 Local authorities have a legal requirement to work towards Air Quality Strategy 
(AQS) objectives under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 and relevant regulations 
made under that part and to meet the requirements of the Local Air Quality 
Management (LAQM) statutory process.

3.3 Whilst conducting the LAQM process, the monitoring has identified high 
concentrations of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) in Market Hill, Maldon.  Analysis of 
roadside air quality monitoring has identified that for the period of July to December 
2017 the mean concentration of NO2 was 55.19µg/m3 and that an exceedance of the 
annual mean Air Quality Objectives (40µg/m3) is highly likely.  It has been estimated 
that the NO2 concentration at the receptor (façade of residential property) is 
52.4µg/m3.

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



Agenda Item no. 9

3.4 The Community Services Committee had concerns and a summary of these is 
attached at APPENDIX B. 

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 The Council is required to declare an AQMA (Air Quality Management Area) where 
monitoring dictates it will not meet the set Air Quality targets.  It is clear that Market 
Hill fails to meet the relevant targets and therefore the Council is obliged to declare 
the area as an AQMA.  The Council is required to complete and submit an AQMP 
within 12 months of the declaration which is at a cost to the Council of £20,000.

5. IMPACT ON CORPORATE GOALS

5.1 Potentially, the current position could have a negative impact on the corporate goals 
in particular “Strengthening Communities to be Safe, Active and Healthy” and 
“Protecting and Shaping the District”.  By declaring the AQMA and preparing an 
action plan which aims to develop measures to improve the air quality along Market 
Hill, this will reverse the impact on the corporate goals and comply with the relevant 
UK Air Quality targets.

6. IMPLICATIONS

(i) Impact on Customers – By declaring the AQMA and preparing an action 
plan it will have a positive impact on customers in particular those who reside 
in the area.

(ii) Impact on Equalities – The Council is committed to providing equal 
opportunities with no discrimination.  There are no identifiable impacts 
currently although this should be monitored as the action plan is developed.

(iii) Impact on Risk – Failure to declare the AQMA could result in financial 
penalties against the Council by Government.  Failure to prepare and deliver 
measures set out in the proposed AQMP could impact on public health and an 
inability to meet the corporate goals.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial and human) – The financial implication is 
up to £20,000 to prepare and deliver an AQMP. Putting measures in place 
recommended by the Plan will ensure that residents within the AQMA will 
benefit from good air quality.

(v) Impact on the Environment – By identifying the AQMA and subsequent 
action planning to introduce measures to improve air quality this will provide 
a positive impact on the environment

Background Papers: 
Air Quality Update and Proposed Declaration of Air Quality Management Area on Market 
Hill, Maldon report.

Enquiries to: Richard Holmes, Director of Customers and Community, (Tel: 01621 875752).

Page 48



REPOR
DIREC
to 
COMM
10 JUL
 
AIR QU
MANA

1. 
 

 1.1

 

2. 
 

 

3. 
 

 3.1

 3.2

 3.3

 3.4

Our V

RT of 
CTOR OF P

MUNITY SE
LY 2018 

UALITY U
AGEMENT

PURPOSE

To provide 
in the distri
along Mark
subsequent

RECOMM

(i) that
Mar
supp

 
(ii) that

reco
prod

SUMMAR

Local autho
(AQS) obje
made under
Manageme
 
The LAQM
and assess a
objectives a
 
Where an e
Quality Ma
setting out 
 
Whilst cond
concentrati
roadside air
2017 the m

ision: To ma

PLANNING

ERVICES 

UPDATE A
T AREA ON

E OF THE 

Members w
ict, to advis
ket Hill, Ma
t specialist w

MENDATIO

t Members a
rket Hill Ar
plementary 

t subject to (
ommended 
duction of  

RY OF KEY

orities have 
ectives unde
r that part a
nt (LAQM)

M process pl
air quality i
are likely to

exceedance 
anagement A
the measure

ducting the 
ons of Nitro
r quality mo

mean concen

ke Maldon D

G AND RE

COMMIT

AND PROP
N MARKE

REPORT

with an upd
e on the nec

aldon, and to
work require

ONS 

approve the
rea as detail
estimate of

(i) above, th
to approve 
an Air Qual

Y ISSUES

a legal requ
er Part IV o
and to meet 
) statutory p

laces an obl
in their area
o be achieve

is considere
Area (AQM
es it intends

LAQM pro
ogen Dioxid
onitoring ha

ntration of N

District a bett

EGULATO

TTEE 

POSED DE
ET HILL, M

date of the la
cessity to de
o request fu
ed.  

e production
led within th
f £20k; 

he Finance 
a Suppleme
lity Action 

uirement to
of the Enviro
the requirem

process. 

ligation on a
as, and to de
ed.  

ed likely, th
MA) and prep

s to put in p

ocess, the m
de (NO2) in
as identified

NO2 was 55

ter place to li

ORY SERV

CLARATI
MALDON

atest results
eclare an A

unding is ma

n of an Air Q
his report su

and Corpor
entary Estim
Plan to com

 work towa
onment Act
ments of the

all local aut
etermine wh

he local auth
pare an Air

place in purs

monitoring h
n Market Hi
d that for the
.19µg/m3 a

ve, work and

ICES 

ION OF AI

of the Air Q
ir Quality M
ade availabl

Quality Act
ubject to app

ate Services
mate of £20k
mply with le

rds Air Qua
1995 and r

e Local Air 

thorities to r
hether or no

hority must 
Quality Ac

suit of the o

has identifie
ill, Maldon.
e period of 
and that an e

Agenda Ite

d enjoy 

IR QUALIT

Quality mon
Managemen
le for the 

tion Plan for
proval of a 

s Committe
k to enable 
egislation 

ality Strateg
relevant reg
Quality 

regularly re
ot the air qua

declare an 
ction Plan (A
objectives.  

ed high 
.  Analysis o
July to Dec
exceedance 

 

m no. 9 

TY 

nitoring 
nt Area 

r the 

ee be 
the 

gy 
ulations 

view 
ality 

Air 
AQAP) 

of 
cember 

of the 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 49



 3.5

 3.6

 3.7

 

 

 3.8

annual mea
that the NO
52.4µg/m3
 
 
An addition
validate the
 
In accordan
declare the 
Rural Affai
Report (AS
 
The bounda
detail in the

 
Failure to d
in turn, cou
 

an Air Quali
O2 concentra
. 

nal six diffu
e extent of t

nce with the
AQMA and

irs (Defra), 
SR) due for 

ary of the pr
e report atta

declare AQM
uld be prose

ity Objectiv
ation at the 

usion monito
the area. 

e legislation
d submit thi
in conjunct
submission

roposed AQ
ached at AP

MAs may re
ecuted by th

ves (40µg/m
receptor (fa

oring statio

n, the next st
is to the De
tion with the
n after June 

QMA is as f
PPENDIX 1

esult in the 
he EU if the 

m3) is highly
açade of res

ns have bee

teps will be
epartment fo
e Council’s
2018. 

follows and 
1. 

Council bei
UK fails to

y likely.  It h
sidential pro

en placed al

e by Statutor
or the Envir

Annual Air

can be revi

 

ing prosecu
o comply wi

Agenda Ite

has been es
operty) is 

long the rou

ry Declarati
ronment, Fo
r Quality St

iewed in mo

uted by Defr
ith EU direc

m no. 9 

stimated 

ute to 

ion to 
ood and 
tatus 

ore 

ra who, 
ctives. 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 50



 3.9

 3.10

 3.11

 

4. 
 

 4.1

 4.2

 

5. 
 

 5.1

The Counc
an Air Qua
developmen
 
• Creation
• Source a
• Develop
• Identify 
• Writing 
• Internal 
 
Submit fina
Report in Ju
 
Along with
Service Lev
of its Annu
 
Historically
reports for 
service at a
basis a quo
will be outs
notwithstan
at APPEND
been anticip
of Resource
made with 

CONCLUS

The Counc
meet the se
targets and 
Council is r
declaration
 
Further det
appropriate
stage, a req
completion
approximat

IMPACT O

Potentially,
in particula
“Protecting
action plan 

il will have
ality Action 
nt and deliv

n of  a steeri
apportionme
pment and q

how measu
of Air Qual
and externa

al AQAP to
une 2019. 

h a number o
vel Agreem

ual Status Re

y, Essex Lo
submission

a much redu
tation has b
side of the s
nding the la
DIX 2 for in
pated that th
es but it is u
this report a

SION 

il is require
et Air Qualit

therefore th
required to 

n which is at

ails will be 
e procureme
quest is mad
n of this wor
te amount in

ON CORP

, the current
ar “Strength
g and Shapin

which aims

12 months,
Plan (AQA

very would l

ing group 
ent & disper

quantificatio
ures would b
lity Action P
al consultati

o Defra with

of other Ess
ment with Ch

eport due to

cal Authori
n to Defra; h
uced rate thr
been sought 
scope of the
ck of resour
nformation 
his would b
understood t
at this time.

ed to declare
ty targets.  I
he Council i
complete an
t a cost to th

reported to
ent process a
de to Membe
rk (with the
nvolved in a

ORATE G

t position co
hening Comm
ng the Distr
s to develop

, from the J
AP).  It is an

likely inclu

rsion mode
on of measu
be delivered
Plan  
ion  

hin the form

sex Local A
helmsford C
o the technic

ities have us
however Ch
rough the E
from CCC 

e technical e
rces to com
and will fo

be subject to
that it is app
. 

e an AQMA
It is clear th
is obliged to
nd submit a
he Council, 

o Members f
and progres
ers to confi

e figures con
a worst case

GOALS 

ould have a
munities to 
rict”. By dec
p measures 

June submis
nticipated th
ude the follo

lling of area
ures (effectiv
d and fundin

mal submissi

Authorities, t
City Counci
cal complex

sed King’s C
helmsford C
ssex Conso
for the prep

expertise wi
mplete the w

rm part of a
o a subseque
propriate th

A where mo
hat Market H
o declare th

an AQMP w
as outlined

following th
ssion of this
rm that fund
ntained in A
e, subject to

a negative im
be Safe, Ac

claring the A
to improve 

ssion, to dev
at the AQA

owing tasks:

a in and sur
veness/price
ng streams  

ion of the 20

the Council
l to underta
xity of the s

College Lon
ity Council 
rtium for A
paration of t
ithin the ser
ork.  The qu
a procureme
ent growth b

hat a request

nitoring dic
Hill fails to 
he area as an
within 12 mo

in APPEN

he completio
s work.  How
ding will be

APPENDIX
o the procur

mpact on the
ctive and H
AQMA and
the air qual

Agenda Ite

velop and su
AP timeline,
:  

rrounding A
e)  

019 Annual

l currently h
ake the prep
subject matt

ndon to pre
 (CCC) offe

Air Quality. 
the AQAP, 
rvice 
uotation is a
ent process.
bid to the D
t for fundin

ctates it will
meet the re

n AQMA.  T
onths of the

NDIX 1. 

on of an 
wever, at th
e available f

X 2 likely to
rement proc

e corporate 
Healthy” and
d preparing 
lity along M

m no. 9 

ubmit 

AQMA  

l Status 

hold a 
aration 

ter. 

pare 
ered this 
On this 
as this 

attached 
  It had 

Director 
g be 

l not 
elevant 
The 
e 

his 
for the 
 be the 
ess). 

goals 
d 
an 

Market 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 51



Agenda Item no. 9 

Hill, this will reverse the impact on the corporate goals and comply with the relevant 
UK Air Quality targets. 

 

6. IMPLICATIONS 

 
(ii) Impact on Customers – By declaring the AQMA and preparing an action 

plan it will have a positive impact on customers in particular those who reside 
in the area. 

(iii) Impact on Equalities – The Council is committed to providing equal 
opportunities with no discrimination.  There are no identifiable impacts 
currently although this should be monitored as the action plan is developed. 

(iv) Impact on Risk – Failure to declare the AQMA could result in financial 
penalties against the Council by Government.  Failure to prepare and deliver 
measures set out in the proposed AQMP could impact on public health and an 
inability to meet the corporate goals. 

(v/vi) Impact on Resources (financial and human) – The financial implication is 
 up to £20,000 to prepare and deliver an AQMP. Putting measures in place 
 recommended by the Plan will ensure that residents within the AQMA will 
 benefit from good air quality. 

(v) Impact on the Environment – By identifying the AQMA and subsequent 
action planning to introduce measures to improve air quality this will provide 
a positive impact on the environment. 

 
Background Papers: None 
 
Enquiries to: Shirley Hall on 01621 875817 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 52



2018 Air Quality Management Area 
Preliminary Report 

In fulfilment of Part IV of the 
Environment Act 1995 
Local Air Quality Management 

February 2018 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 53

berna
Typewritten Text

berna_1
Typewritten Text

berna_2
Typewritten Text

berna_3
Typewritten Text

berna_4
Typewritten Text

berna_5
Typewritten Text

berna_6
Typewritten Text

berna_7
Typewritten Text

berna_8
Typewritten Text

berna_9
Typewritten Text

berna_10
Typewritten Text

berna_11
Typewritten Text

berna_12
Typewritten Text

berna_13
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1

berna_14
Typewritten Text

berna_15
Typewritten Text

berna_16
Typewritten Text

berna_17
Typewritten Text



Local Authority 
Officer 

Shirley Hall 

Department Environmental Health 

Address 

Princes Road, 
Maldon, 
Essex, 
CM9 5DL 

Telephone 01621 875817 

E-mail shirley.hall@maldon.gov.uk 

Date 6th February 2018 

Written by Tim Savage 

Scientific Team 
Public Health & 
Protection Services 
Chelmsford City 
Council 
Duke Street 
Chelmsford 
Essex CM1 1JE 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 54

mailto:Shirley.hall@maldon.gov.uk


Table of Contents 

Executive Summary: Air Quality in Our Area ................................................ 4 

Alternative Options .................................................................................. 4 

Local Air Quality Management ........................................................................ 4 

Market Hill ......................................................................................................... 7 

Air Quality Management Area Declaration 

Anticipated Timeline ........................................................................................ 8 

Appendix A: Draft Air Quality Management Area Order ............................... 9 

Appendix B: Summary of Air Quality Objectives in England ..................... 11 

Glossary .......................................................................................................... 12 

References ...................................................................................................... 13 

 

Figures 

Figure 1 -  MD21 Nitrogen Dioxide Drop Off Calculator ................................ 6 

Figure 2 -  Google Streetview image of Market Hill to indicate street 

canyon characteristics and gradient .............................................................. 7 

Figure 3 –Project Timeline ............................................................................... 8 

 

Tables 

Table 1 – Diffusion Tube Monitoring Results ................................................ 5 

Table B.1 – Air Quality Objectives in England ............................................. 11 

 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 55



Executive Summary 

Local authorities have a legal requirement to work towards Air Quality Strategy (AQS) 

objectives under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 and relevant regulations made 

under that part and to meet the requirements of the Local Air Quality Management 

(LAQM) statutory process. 

The LAQM process places an obligation on all local authorities to regularly review and 

assess air quality in their areas, and to determine whether or not the air quality 

objectives are likely to be achieved. Where an exceedance is considered likely the 

local authority must declare an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and prepare an 

Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) setting out the measures it intends to put in place in 

pursuit of the objectives. 

Whilst conducting the LAQM process, Maldon District Council Environmental Health 

team have identified high concentrations of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) in Market Hill, 

Maldon. Analysis of roadside air quality monitoring has identified that for the period of 

July to December 2017 the mean concentration of NO2 was 55.19µg/m3 and that an 

exceedance of the annual mean Air Quality Objectives (40µg/m3) is highly likely. It has 

been estimated that the NO2 concentration at the receptor (façade of residential 

property) is 52.4µg/m3. 

This report identifies a suitable boundary for an Air Quality Management Area and sets 

out a timeline for the process of AQMA declaration and AQAP development. 

Alternative Options 

There is no alternative option – failure to declare affected areas AQMAs could result 

in the Council being prosecuted by the Department for the Environment, Food and 

Rural Affairs (Defra), who in turn, could be prosecuted by the EU if the UK fails to 

comply with EU directives. 

Local Air Quality Management 

Diffusion tube monitoring commenced in February 2017 adjacent to a property on 

Market Hill. Measured concentrations were exceptionally high but the site was located 

on the corner of a building, slightly set back from the façade where the free circulation 

of air was affected. This site did not fully comply with the Defra Technical Guidance 

TG.16 and monitoring at a new roadside site close-by commenced in July 2017 and 

the existing site was retained for reference.  

Table 1 below provides 2017 monitoring data for the two monitoring locations on 

Market Hill and two nearby locations on the Causeway and junction with the High 

Street. 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 56



Table 1 -  Diffusion Tube Monitoring Results 

Site ID 
Monitoring 
Address 

Nitrogen Dioxide concentrations measured in µg/m3 

Jan-
17 

Feb-
17 

Mar-
17 

Apr-
17 

May-
17 

Jun-
17 

Jul-
17 

Aug-
17 

Sep-
17 

Oct-
17 

Nov-17 
Dec-
17 

Raw 
Annual 
Mean 

Valid 
Data 

Capture 
rate 

Bias 
Adjusted 
Annual 

Mean (0.77) 

Estimated 
Concentration 

at Adjacent 
Receptor 

MD6 
High Street 
(Market Hill 
Junction) 

54.8 45.7 45.7 34.9 32.5 31.8 26.3 33 34.1 44.5 42.2 37.1 38.55 100% 31.23 31.23 

MD14 The 
Causeway 

49.5 51.2 30.8 26.8 34.2 33.8 32.3 34.4 41.5 43.5 50.1 30.3 38.2 100% 30.94 30.94 

MD20~ 

Side of 10 
Market Hill, 
Maldon 

N/A 141.4 143.1 117.4 84.7 54.8 58.7 68 64.3 119.1 140.9 135.7 102.55 92% 83.07 83.07 

MD21A 
Front of 10 
Market Hill 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 59.4 81.2 61.9 73.4 60.6 65.5 67.30 50% 54.27 51.59 

MD21B 
Front of 10 
Market Hill 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 61.2 81.7 70.8 73.3 60.2 65.7 69.44 50% 55.74 52.97 

MD21C 
Front of 10 
Market Hill 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 64 75.2 63.7 73 
*Erroneous

Value 
Removed 

67.0 68.98 42% 55.55 52.79 

~ Site MD20 is not compliant with TG.16 guidance and has been retained for reference only. 

* MD21C November 2017 data point removed. The concentration from the laboratory report was 28.7µg/m3 which when compared

with the other tubes, highlighted poor precision and was removed to ensure overall reliability for the data set. 

The average of the MD21 monitoring tubes is 52.80µg/m3 which when applying the NO2 drop off calculation estimates the 

concentration at the receptor (residential property) as 50.3µg/m3 which is a significant exceedance of the Air Quality Objective 

(40µg/m3). 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

P
age 57



Figure 1 -  MD21 Nitrogen Dioxide Drop Off Calculator 

 

When interpreting these results, it should be noted that there is low capture rate for the triplicate site of MD21 at 47.2% due to the 

commencement of monitoring in July 2017 however, both summer and winter months are included making the study reasonably 

representative of a full year’s study. A full year’s monitoring results could be lower however, it is still highly probable that the result 

would still exceed the Air Quality Objective (40µg/m3). 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

P
age 58



Market Hill 

Market Hill is the only access between Maldon Town Centre and Heybridge and is a 

busy route throughout the day. 

The road has a steep gradient between Anchorage Hill and Bull Lane. When vehicles 

travel up inclines, engines are required to work harder to overcome gravity and 

emissions are significantly higher. The opposite occurs for vehicles travelling downhill 

however a general increase in emissions usually occurs when compared with flat 

roads. 

Areas of the road have street canyon characteristics which is where the road is flanked 

by buildings on both sides. Street canyons significantly reduce the dispersal of 

pollution. The MD21 monitoring site is at a location on Market Hill where the gradient 

is steep and within a partial street canyon. 

Figure 2 - Google Streetview image of Market Hill to indicate street canyon 

characteristics and gradient 

 

 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 59



Air Quality Management Area Declaration 

Appendix A contains a draft Air Quality Management order which would designate the 

stretch of Market Hill and properties between Anchorage Hill and Bull Lane as an Air 

Quality Management Area. This is for likely breaches of the annual mean Air Quality 

Objective for Nitrogen Dioxide. 

Breaches of the 1-hour objective are not considered likely because the monitored 

annual mean does not exceed 60µg/m3 which can be considered a proxy 

measurement. 

The boundary of the Air Quality Management Area has been chosen using the 

following information: 

• At Anchorage Lane, properties begin to form a street canyon and the gradient 

increases. Emissions are likely to increase due to the gradient and dispersion 

will take place at a lower rate than in open areas. 

• Monitoring at the top of Market Hill opposite Bull Lane has never exceeded the 

Air Quality Objectives. At this location, the gradient levels off meaning lower 

emissions and the street canyon finishes allowing for better dispersion. 

Project Timeline 

Development and delivery of the project would take place across the following 

anticipated timeline: 

Figure 3 – Project Timeline 

 
Development of the Air Quality Action Plan would likely include the following tasks: 

• Creation of steering group 

• Source apportionment & dispersion modelling of area in and surrounding 

AQMA 

• Development and quantification of measures (effectiveness/price) 

• Identify how measures would be delivered and funding streams 

• Writing of Air Quality Action Plan 

• Internal and external consultation 

FastTrack 
Declaration of 

AQMA

(June 2018) 
Submit AQMA 

Details to Defra 
within 2018 

ASR

Develop Air 
Quality Action 

Plan

(June 2019) 
Submit AQAP 
to Defra within 
2019 Annual 
Status Report

Maldon District 
Council formally 
adopts AQAP

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 60



Appendix A: Draft Air Quality Management Area 

Order 

Environment Act 1995 Part IV Section 83(1) 
Maldon District Council 

Air Quality Management Order 
 
Maldon District Council in exercise of the powers conferred upon it by Section 
83(1) of the Environment Act 1995, hereby makes the following Order.  
 
 
This Order may be cited/referred to as the Maldon District Council Air Quality 
Management Area number 1. 
 
 
Area 1 – Market Hill, Maldon. 
 
And shall come into effect on [date]. 
 
 
The areas shown on the attached maps in red are to be designated as air 
quality management area 1. The designated area incorporates the stretch of 
road and properties between Anchorage Hill and Bull Lane. 
 
 
The map may be viewed at the Council Offices.  
 
 
Area 1 is designated in relation to the likely breach of the nitrogen dioxide 
annual mean as specified in the Air Quality Regulations 2000. 
 
 
This Order shall remain in force until it is varied or revoked by a subsequent 
order.  
 
 
The Common Seal of Maldon District Council was hereunto affixed in the 
presence of: 
 
 
Authorised signatory 
 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………..

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 61



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 62



Appendix B: Summary of Air Quality Objectives in 

England 

Table B.2 – Air Quality Objectives in England 

Pollutant 
Air Quality Objective1 

Concentration Measured as 

Nitrogen Dioxide 

(NO2) 

200 µg/m3 not to be exceeded more 

than 18 times a year 
1-hour mean 

40 µg/m3 Annual mean 

Particulate Matter 

(PM10) 

50 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 

than 35 times a year 
24-hour mean 

40 µg/m3 Annual mean 

Sulphur Dioxide 

(SO2) 

350 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 

than 24 times a year 
1-hour mean 

125 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 

than 3 times a year 
24-hour mean 

266 µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 

than 35 times a year 
15-minute mean 

 

1 The units are in microgrammes of pollutant per cubic metre of air (µg/m3). 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 63



Glossary 

Abbreviation Description 

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures, 
outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods, 
showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit 
values’ 

AQMA Air Quality Management Area – An area where air pollutant 
concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality 
objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and 
objectives 

ASR Air Quality Annual Status Report 

Defra Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

EU European Union 

LAQM Local Air Quality Management 

NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide 

Street Canyon Road which is flanked by buildings resembling a canyon 

 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 64



References 

Defra Diffusion Tube Bias Adjustment Factors Spreadsheet available at; 

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/assets/databasediffusiontubebiasfactorsv0917final.xls  

Defra LAQM Policy Guidance LAQM.PG16 available at; 

http://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-PG16-April-16-v1.pdf 

Defra LAQM Technical Guidance LAQM.TG16 available at; 

http://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-April-16-v1.pdf 

Essex Air Quality Consortium available at; http://www.essexair.org.uk/Default.aspx  

Google Streetview of Market Hill available at; 

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.7339001,0.6785149,3a,75y,205.31h,82.44t/dat

a=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1svCP7SOGTBYeQHUHTIqxobw!2e0!7i13312!8i6656  

Defra Nitrogen Dioxide Fall Off With Distance Calculator available at; 

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/NO2-Fall-Off-With-Distance-from-Roads-

Calculator-v4.1.xls  

Maldon District Council Air Quality Annual Status Report 2017 available at; 

http://www.essexair.org.uk/Reports/Maldon_ASR_2017.pdf  

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 65

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/assets/databasediffusiontubebiasfactorsv0917final.xls
http://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-PG16-April-16-v1.pdf
http://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-April-16-v1.pdf
http://www.essexair.org.uk/Default.aspx
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.7339001,0.6785149,3a,75y,205.31h,82.44t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1svCP7SOGTBYeQHUHTIqxobw!2e0!7i13312!8i6656
https://www.google.co.uk/maps/@51.7339001,0.6785149,3a,75y,205.31h,82.44t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1svCP7SOGTBYeQHUHTIqxobw!2e0!7i13312!8i6656
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/NO2-Fall-Off-With-Distance-from-Roads-Calculator-v4.1.xls
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/NO2-Fall-Off-With-Distance-from-Roads-Calculator-v4.1.xls
http://www.essexair.org.uk/Reports/Maldon_ASR_2017.pdf


Proposal to Produce an Air Quality Action Plan for Maldon District Council 

Introduction 

In 2017, Maldon District Council monitored nitrogen dioxide concentrations that 

exceeds the Air Quality Objectives of 40μg/m3 at relevant exposure. Under Local Air 

Quality Management (LAQM) requirements, the Council must declare an Air Quality 

Management Area (AQMA). The process of declaration will run alongside the 

submission of the 2018 Air Quality Status Report (ASR). 

Following declaration of the AQMA, Maldon District Council has 12 months to 
develop an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP).  

Chelmsford City Council proposed support: 

Production of an AQAP to work towards compliance with the air quality objectives. 

Development work may include: 

• Inception Meeting

• Formation of a steering group tasked with developing an AQAP

• Developing methodology for baseline modelling and assist with procurement

of dispersion modelling consultant

• Interpretation of baseline modelling and production of a summary report

• Development of broad action plan measures and undertaking screening

process

• Preparation of draft AQAP

• Develop Consultation

• Production of final AQAP

• Committee attendance to present/defend AQAP

Resource requirements 

• Air Quality Action Plan Development by Chelmsford City Council Scientific

Team: £6,000+vat

• Provision of traffic data (Essex Highways). Costs may depend on MDC

arrangements with ECC/Essex Highways.

• Source Apportionment and baseline modelling. Depending on scope: approx.

£5-10,000 (Dispersion modelling consultant). Likely to include meteorological

data otherwise approx. £500

• Modelling of final action plan (main) measures: Approx. £1,000 per measure.

Total: £3-4,000 (Dispersion modelling consultant)

Project Team 

Name Representing Role 

Tim Savage CCC Scientific Team Project Manager 

Kerry Mackay CCC Scientific Team Project Officer 

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX
 A

Page 66

berna_18
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 2



APPENDIX B

SUMMARY OF CONCERNS RAISED BY THE COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE (10 JULY 2018)

Agenda Item 9 – Air Quality Update and Proposed Declaration of an Air Quality Management Area on Market Hill, Maldon

Concerns raised Officer Responses

That given the fact we already have diffusion 
monitoring stations collecting data why is the 
Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) so 
expensive.

The diffusion tube monitoring provides adequate levels of results to determine whether or not a 
“problem” exists which requires the declaration of an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).  The 
tubes do not however provide further information on potential source apportionment, allow for 
modelling, devising of potential measures to combat pollutant levels, modelling of the likely impact of 
those measures, create the action plan, provide for consultation, creation of the steering group, etc.  
These kind of activities are why there is a cost involved with development of an AQAP.  This 
Authority has not previously had to declare an AQMA and so we do not have the technical skills, 
resource (e.g. officer time), software, etc. in-house to undertake this process and consequently we are 
in a position of having to tender for such works.

That a full breakdown of the costs involved in 
producing the AQAP be provided as this is 
taxpayer’s money and a huge expense.

Of course.  There is a breakdown of the likely costs provided by Chelmsford City Council Scientific 
Team contained within Appendix 2 (page 35) of the Community Services Committee Agenda pack.  A 
further such breakdown will be contained when a subsequent quotation is received from another 
contractor as part of the tendering process.

That if we cannot mitigate the problem we 
may be unable to deliver the Local 
Development Plan (LDP).

The existing of the AQMA does not necessarily mean that the LDP cannot be delivered or that 
development cannot take place. From a planning perspective the AQMA introduces additional 
assessments required for certain planning applications. Air quality is a component of local and national 
policy, set out below.

That the Policy Manager’s views be sought as 
this could impact on Planning Policy.

With regards to plan preparation, we have a LDP, which provides policy guidance with regard to air 
pollution against which relevant planning applications should be assessed. The following policies 
apply:

 LDP Policy D1 Climate Change & Environmental Impact of New Development requires all new 
development to minimise its impact on the environment by ensuring that all forms of pollution, 
including air pollution are minimised. Any detrimental impacts and potential risks to the human 
and natural environment will need to be adequately addressed by appropriate avoidance, alleviation 
and mitigation measures. 

 Policy D1 expects new development to protect the amenity of surrounding areas with regard to 
pollution. 

P
age 67



APPENDIX B

Concerns raised Officer Responses

 Policy I2 requires development of 50 or more units/1000sqm non-residential floorspace to submit a 
Health Impact Assessment.  This should include impacts on air quality.

In a review of the Plan, the AQMA will need to be recognised in policy and had regard to in future 
policy development, potential site allocation assessments, habitat regulations assessments, health 
impact assessments and sustainability appraisals.

In addition, the Council also includes an Air Quality Supplement to the Maldon Design Guide 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).  Relevant proposals for new development should consider 
air quality in the design, construction and operation of the development over its lifetime.  This includes 
consideration of adverse impacts on potential site occupiers as well as on the wider area.

We are also developing the detailed action plans for the delivery of the Central Area Master Plan.  In 
putting together the latter we will need to have regard to the AQMA.

The Government issues Planning Practice Guidance on Air Quality (https://www.gov.uk/guidance/air-
quality--3#when-could-air-quality-be-relevant-to-a-planning-decision)

This guidance applies both to plan preparation and the determination of planning applications.

With regards to planning applications, the introductory element of the Government’s Planning Policy 
Guidance (PPG) states:

‘When could air quality be relevant to a planning decision?

Whether or not air quality is relevant to a planning decision will depend on the proposed development 
and its location.  Concerns could arise if the development is likely to generate air quality impact in an 
area where air quality is known to be poor.  They could also arise where the development is likely to 
adversely impact upon the implementation of air quality strategies and action plans and/or, in 
particular, lead to a breach of European Union (EU) legislation (including that applicable to wildlife).  
The steps a local planning authority might take in considering air quality are set out in this flow 
diagram.

P
age 68



APPENDIX B

Concerns raised Officer Responses

When deciding whether air quality is relevant to a planning application, considerations could include 
whether the development would:

 Significantly affect traffic in the immediate vicinity of the proposed development site or further 
afield. This could be by generating or increasing traffic congestion; significantly changing traffic 
volumes, vehicle speed or both; or significantly altering the traffic composition on local roads. 
Other matters to consider include whether the proposal involves the development of a bus station, 
coach or lorry park; adds to turnover in a large car park; or result in construction sites that would 
generate large Heavy Goods Vehicle flows over a period of a year or more.

 Introduce new point sources of air pollution. This could include furnaces which require prior 
notification to local authorities; or extraction systems (including chimneys) which require approval 
under pollution control legislation or biomass boilers or biomass-fuelled CHP plant; centralised 
boilers or CHP plant burning other fuels within or close to an air quality management area or 
introduce relevant combustion within a Smoke Control Area;

 Expose people to existing sources of air pollutants. This could be by building new homes, 
workplaces or other development in places with poor air quality.

 Give rise to potentially unacceptable impact (such as dust) during construction for nearby sensitive 
locations.

 Affect biodiversity. In particular, is it likely to result in deposition or concentration of pollutants 
that significantly affect a European-designated wildlife site, and is not directly connected with or 
necessary to the management of the site, or does it otherwise affect biodiversity, particularly 
designated wildlife sites.’

If the answer to any of these is yes there will be an impact the Council will require an Air Quality 
Assessment to be submitted with the planning application. According to the PPG, this will include:

 ‘a description of baseline conditions and how these could change;

 relevant air quality concerns;

 the assessment methods to be adopted and any requirements around verification of modelling air 
quality;

P
age 69



APPENDIX B

Concerns raised Officer Responses

 sensitive locations;

 the basis for assessing impact and determining the significance of an impact;

 construction phase impact; and/or

 acceptable mitigation measures.’

The PPG further goes on to say that:

‘Mitigation options where necessary will be locationally specific, will depend on the proposed 
development and should be proportionate to the likely impact.  It is important therefore that local 
planning authorities work with applicants to consider appropriate mitigation so as to ensure the new 
development is appropriate for its location and unacceptable risks are prevented. Planning conditions 
and obligations can be used to secure mitigation where the relevant tests are met.’

‘Examples of mitigation include:

 the design and layout of development to increase separation distances from sources of air pollution;

 using green infrastructure, in particular trees, to absorb dust and other pollutants;

 means of ventilation;

 promoting infrastructure to promote modes of transport with low impact on air quality;

 controlling dust and emissions from construction, operation and demolition; and

 contributing funding to measures, including those identified in air quality action plans and low 
emission strategies, designed to offset the impact on air quality arising from new development.’

For larger development, air quality is a matter that must be covered in an environmental impact 
assessment.

The Council will take into account what the applicants submitted and consult with appropriate officers 
internally and with other agencies.

P
age 70



APPENDIX B

Concerns raised Officer Responses
The location of the AQMA is central within Maldon and Heybridge and provides vital links between 
the two settlements, but also between Maldon and the Causeway employment area, and Heybridge (and 
beyond) and Maldon town centre.  Therefore, development in the two towns will impact on traffic 
flows through Market Hill.  The issue that will need to be addressed is what this volume of traffic will 
be, what the vehicles will be, when and in what direction.

This is best assessed, as per the Government guidance, through an air quality assessment with relevant 
planning applications.  It would be prejudicial to say at this stage that the designation of the AQMA 
will impact on the LDP.

If it was and no development was to take place, it would mean that the Council would not be able to 
deliver the LDP, which would have to be reviewed.  Any review will need to have regard to the 
potential impact of development on the AQMA.

That this report should be confidential given 
the potential negative impact on the market 
value of properties in the area.

There is a requirement under Schedule 11, 4, 2 (c) of the Environment Act 1995 which stipulates that 
copies of the air quality management area order, etc. should be freely available to the public.  Good 
practice is to notify various parties including the Secretary of State, the Environment Agency, relevant 
local businesses and local environmental pressure groups.  Further guidance suggests that it should be 
advertised locally and ideally placed on the internet.

Whilst it is understood that impact could be had on market values in the immediate area, it is simply a 
matter of at what stage something is brought in to the public domain – either now or in the next month 
or two at the actual point of making the declaration order.  Consequently, there will not be ability to 
maintain confidentiality indefinitely.  On the flipside, the fact that action will be forthcoming to 
improve air quality as a result of the action plan is a positive.

That this is potentially a public health issue 
and we have a duty of care to alert residents 
to the dangers.

The purpose behind this legislation is clearly to control certain pollutant levels where they are at 
concentrations likely to harm health.  In accordance with the above, we have a responsibility to advise 
people, and to then act through creation of an AQAP.

That the crux of the matter relates to 
unloading and loading on the High Street, 
causing the build-up of traffic on Market Hill.

The AQAP production involves consultation and discussions with stakeholders, including County 
Council and causes of the issue such as traffic flow problems on local roads would be considered as 
part of the potential solution.

That potentially the issues are across a wider 
area e.g. the Causeway.

The problem with servicing is the adequacy of rear servicing areas.  If the rear of shops cannot be 
accessed through a separate highway, front servicing will continue.  Through the Central Area Master 
Plan process the Council should consider how traffic flows can be improved through the area.  At this 

P
age 71



APPENDIX B

Concerns raised Officer Responses
stage no options should be ruled out.  What the Council needs to be mindful of is that the town centre 
and the Causeway are key economic centres for the town.  Poor access to either will have significant 
negative impacts.  Therefore, solutions should be realistic but also take account of the necessity to 
access both areas, together with the various residential properties.  Options include: shutting the road; 
closing it for uphill traffic; better ‘alternative routes signage’ to divert traffic away from the AQMA; 
improvements to the servicing arrangements on the High Street; changes to prioritisation of traffic on 
the High Street / Market Hill and surrounding areas.

That despite being proactive and raising this 
issue previously with the Highways Panel, to 
stop parking during the day on the High 
Street, this authority now has to bear the cost. 
There should be some recompense by Essex 
County Council (ECC) toward the cost of the 
Air Quality Action Plan.

The responsibility for the Air Quality monitoring and actions rest with District Councils.  However, it 
is acknowledged that traffic-related issues are often under the control of County Council which can 
make workable solutions difficult without their assistance.  It would clearly be helpful to seek finance 
from ECC but they do not ultimately have the responsibility for this legal duty.

P
age 72



Document is Restricted

Page 73

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Appendix 1

	6 Corporate Health and Safety
	Appendix 1

	7 Budgetary Control (April - June 2018)
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1A
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	8 Supplementary Estimates, Virements and Use of Reserves: 24 May - 27 June 2018
	9 Air Quality Update and Proposed Declaration of an Air Quality Management Area on Market Hill, Maldon
	Appendix A
	9 Air Quality Update and Proposed Declaration of an Air Quality Management Area on Market Hill Maldon
	9 Air Quality Update and Proposed Declaration of Air Quality Management Area on Market Hill, Maldon - Appendix 1
	9 Air Quality Update and Proposed Declaration of Air Quality Management Area on Market Hill, Maldon - Appendix 2

	Appendix B

	12 Outstanding Loan - Financial Arrangements
	Appendix 1




